
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda

Vibrant and Sustainable City 
Scrutiny Panel
30 June 2016

Time 6.00 pm Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Scrutiny

Venue Committee Room 3 - 3rd Floor - Civic Centre

Membership

Chair Cllr Ian Angus (Lab)
Vice-chair Cllr Christopher Haynes (Con)

Labour Conservative UKIP

Cllr Malcolm GwinnettCllr Mary Bateman
Cllr Val Evans
Cllr Bhupinder Gakhal
Cllr Keith Inston
Cllr John Rowley
Cllr Lynne Moran
Cllr Zee Russell
Cllr Caroline Siarkiewicz
Cllr Tersaim Singh

Cllr Andrew Wynne

Quorum for this meeting is three Councillors.

Information for the Public
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the democratic support team:

Contact Earl Piggott-Smith
Tel/Email Tel: 01902 551251 or earl.piggott-smith@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Address Democratic Support, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square,

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:

Website http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk
Email democratic.support@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
Tel 01902 555043

Please take note of the protocol for filming, recording, and use of social media in meetings, copies of 
which are displayed in the meeting room.

Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public.

http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/
mailto:democratic.support@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda
Page 2 of 3

Agenda
Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No. Title

MEETING BUSINESS ITEMS

1 Apologies 

2 Declarations of interest 

3 Minutes of the previous meeting (14 April 2016) (Pages 5 - 8)
[To approve the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record]

4 Matters arising 
[To consider any matter arising from the minutes]

DISCUSSION ITEMS

5 New Cross Residents Parking Scheme (Pages 9 - 16)
[Bob Willis, Head of Highways Network, to present report on a scheme to deliver a 
residents parking scheme in a phased approach to the area surrounding New 
Cross Hospital]

PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY
Exclusion of the press and public
[To pass the following resolution:

That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business as they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information falling within paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to the Act 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority 
holding that information)]

6 Local Housing Company - Final Business Case (report to follow) 



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda
Page 3 of 3

[Lesley Roberts, Strategic Director of Housing, to present report on the final 
business case to establish the Local Housing Company to develop additional new 
homes in the City.]



This page is intentionally left blank



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Vibrant and Sustainable City 
Scrutiny Panel
Minutes - 14 April 2016

Attendance

Members of the Vibrant and Sustainable City Scrutiny Panel

Cllr Ian Angus (Chair)
Cllr Val Evans
Cllr Bhupinder Gakhal
Cllr Malcolm Gwinnett
Cllr Christopher Haynes (Vice-Chair)
Cllr Keith Inston
Cllr Lynne Moran
Cllr John Rowley
Cllr Caroline Siarkiewicz
Cllr Andrew Wynne

In Attendance

Cllr Steve Evans – Cabinet Member for City Environment

Employees
Ross Cook Service Director, City Environment
Andy Jervis Head of Regulatory Services
Earl Piggott-Smith Scrutiny Officer
Steve Woodward Head of Service Public Realm

Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No. Title

1 Apologies
There were no apologies recorded for the meeting.

2 Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest recorded.

3 Minutes of the previous meeting (11 February 2016)
That the minutes of the meeting held on 11 February 2016 be approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chair.

4 Matters arising
Minute 5 – Review of Age Designation on Council Flats.

The Scrutiny Officer advised that an interim public communication plan was sent to 
all panel members.

Page 5

Agenda Item No: 3



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

Minute 9 – Improving the City Offer Housing Company Outline Business Case

The Scrutiny Officer advised that meetings of the Council steering group for the local 
housing company will be arranged before the end of July 2016. 

5 Keeping the City clean
Ross Cook, Service Director – City Environment, introduced the report and 
commented on the positive first impressions of the city. The Service Director 
commented on the improvements in the service and the high ratings from customers.

The panel discussed a range of issues linked to the issue of fly tipping and the work 
that the service is doing to help keep the City clean. The panel commented on the 
overall positive experience of using the Councils ReportIt app and the service more 
generally in dealing with litter complaints.

Steve Evans, Cabinet Member for City Environment, welcomed the positive 
comments but accepted that the experience of people who have used the reporting 
system has not always work in all situations. The Cabinet Member for City 
Environment explained that the system will be upgraded to ensure that people get a 
prompt response and will be more user friendly.

The panel discussed the issues linked to fly tipping. The panel welcomed the display 
of warning street signs about fly tipping and despite early reservations about its 
impact; evidence has shown that it has helped to reduce the problem. The panel 
discussed the Council policy towards prosecuting offenders for fly tipping. Andy 
Jervis, Head of Regulatory Services, explained the Council has used intelligence 
from cameras to prosecute offenders. 

The Head of Regulatory Services explained that two cases have been successfully 
prosecuted in court recently, two more have been approved and a further four to six 
cases were in the final stages of investigation. 

The Head of Regulatory Services acknowledged that the level of fines is low, but the 
Council does seek maximum fines. The issue of fines does get press publicity which 
helps to get a message out that the Council is prepared to prosecute. However, the 
Council is selective when making a decision to investigate as it will involve the 
detailed collection of supporting evidence which is very resource intensive so only 
those cases with a realistic prospect of conviction are pursued. 

In relation to litter, fixed penalties are issued for the vast majority of offences and the 
majority of people who are given fixed penalty notices for littering pay within 30 days.
 
The Cabinet Member for City Environment suggested that the panel would find it 
useful to visit City Direct to see how reports and complaints about litter are dealt with. 
The panel welcomed the idea of the visit. The scrutiny officer to make the necessary 
arrangements for the visit.

The panel discussed the fly tipping of goods such as fridges and if there was a link to 
the change in opening hours at recycling centre. 

Page 6



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

The Cabinet Member for City Environment explained that there is no obvious link 
between the dumping of specific goods and changes to opening hours. The situation 
is similar across other regions in the West Midlands.

The panel queried if the quality of the collection service has led to increased budget 
pressure and also encouraged people to use it as alternative to paying for the 
collection and disposal of large goods. The speed of rubbish collection was 
highlighted as a possible factor behind the increased report of fly tipping. 

Steve Woodward, Head of Public Realm, explained that the Council charges a fee for 
the collection of five household items. The panel discussed the significant increase in 
number of enquiries about fly tipping since 2012/13 and the possible reasons. 

The Head of Public Realm commented that the decline in the scrap value of white 
goods and stricter regulations about their disposal may be the reason behind the 
increase in the number of enquiries received. The Head of Public Realm explained 
the options available to the Council to deal with fly tipping on private land. The Head 
of Public Realm explained that the Council will consider cases carefully where 
rubbish has been illegally dumped on private or commercial land. 

The Head of Regulatory Services explained that cameras are used to monitor the 
dumping of rubbish in known hotspots, but due to limited resources they will be 
located in high crime areas. The panel discussed the use of fake cameras by the 
Council to cover other areas.

The panel discussed the need for education for new residents, who may not 
understand the process for disposing of rubbish in the different collection bins. The 
panel suggested that stickers could be used on bins to people who have arrived from 
outside the UK what they should do.

The panel discussed the issue of complaints about rubbish being dumped outside 
flats. The panel suggested that a report on the landlord accreditation scheme could 
be added to a future agenda.

The panel welcomed the increase in the reported customer satisfaction rates for the 
grass cutting service. The panel wanted to record its thanks to the employees for the 
quality of the service. The Head of Public Realm briefed the panel on the work done 
to prepare for the programme of grass cutting needed to deliver a better service.

Resolved
1. The panel welcomed the progress made to keep the City clean and wanted 

to formally congratulate employees in the service about the high standard 
of their work.

2. The scrutiny officer to arrange a tour of City Direct to meet employees and 
to see how enquiries are dealt with.

3. A report on the effectiveness of the landlord accreditation scheme to be 
presented to a future meeting of the panel.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC 
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Report Pages
Page 1 of 7

Vibrant and Sustainable City 
Scrutiny Panel
30 June 2016

Report title New Cross Residents Parking Scheme

Cabinet member with lead 
responsibility

Councillor Steve Evans
City Environment

Wards affected Heath Town

Accountable director Ross Cook, City Environment

Originating service Transportation

Accountable employee(s) Bob Willis
Tel
Email

Head of Highways Network
01902 555790
Bob.willis@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Report to be / has been 
considered by

Strategic Executive Board
Cabinet 

7 June 2016
20 July 2016

Recommendation(s) for action or decision:

The Scrutiny Panel is recommended to:

1. Support the phased implementation of a residents/business parking and Pay and Display 
scheme as detailed in the report.

2. Endorse that residents and businesses should be charged £20 for permits and the 
associated charges to cover some of the costs of the scheme.

3. Endorse the Pay and Display scheme and the associated charges.

Recommendations for noting:

The Scrutiny Board is asked to note:

1. The intention to consult affected residents and businesses by letter and questionnaire.
2. The intention to advertise the necessary Traffic Regulations Orders and implement 

subject to there being no unresolved objections.

Page 9

Agenda Item No: 5



This report is PUBLIC 
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Report Pages
Page 2 of 7

1.0 Purpose

1.1 The report is presented to outline the proposed approach to the implementation of a 
Residents/Business and Pay and Display (P&D) Parking Scheme in areas where parking 
for residents is being severely affected by parking associated with the New Cross 
Hospital site.

2.0 Background

2.1 In 2008 a policy was established for the implementation of residents parking schemes 
and approved the condition that for a scheme to be taken forward there should be a 
consultation which should receive a minimum of a 60% response with 85% of responders 
being in favour of a residents parking scheme.

2.2 This established that there use may be appropriate where residential streets were being 
affected by high parking demand resulting from adjacent land uses.

2.3 The first issue to be addressed was match day parking associated with the Molineux 
Stadium.

2.4 It is now proposed to extend this principle to a scheme to address the impact on 
residents and businesses of parking resulting from activity at the New Cross Hospital 
site. Plan A details the proposed boundary of the scheme.

3.0 Progress, options, discussion, etc.

3.1 It is proposed to implement the scheme in phases;

Phase one: Wolverhampton Road (between Church St and Coronation Road)
Wolverhampton Road (between Graiseley Lane and Rookery Bridge
Wolverhampton Road (service road to numbers 288 – 350)
Graiseley Lane (Wolverhampton Road to Victoria Road)
New Cross Avenue
Coronation Road, Ryton Close, Bates Green, Lawrence Avenue.

Phase two: Graiseley Lane area

Phase three: Remainder of identified area (Bushbury Road).

The phase boundaries are detailed on Plan A; Phase one - Orange, Phase two - Yellow, 
Phase three - Green.

3.2 As well as the residents only parking areas there will be sections of P&D parking and 
other related traffic orders to control parking. It should be noted that it is proposed that 
holders of resident’s/business permits will be able to use P&D bays without charge.

Page 10



This report is PUBLIC 
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Report Pages
Page 3 of 7

3.3 It is proposed that due to the small size of the businesses that permits will be issued on 
the basis of one per employee if they do not have access to off road parking but this may 
need to be reviewed following the initial consultation.

3.4 It is proposed that there will be an annual charge of £20 per permit and for the 
replacement of a lost permit and where a change of details is required. The cost of the 
permit will be reviewed annually.

3.5 The proposed visitor permits will be issued using a voucher book charged for at the rate; 

20 voucher book at £5 (25 pence each).

3.6 It is proposed that other special permits will be made available such as;

Contractor working on property £5 per week (minimum charge for less than one week £5)
Carer permits £20 per annum.  

3.7 The number of permits that can be issued per household or business will be determined 
following consultation, as it is necessary to quantify demand against available spaces. It 
is a risk that it may not be possible to meet residents/business aspirations.

3.8 It is proposed that the P&D charges are set in relation to the charges being levied at the 
hospital. 

The proposed on-street parking charges are;
15 minutes free
Up to 1 hour £1.00
Up to 2 hours £2.00
Up to 4 hours £4.00
Blue badge holders - no charge with a maximum stay of 3 hrs.

The charges currently being levied on the New Cross Hospital site are;
15 minutes free
Up to 1 hour £2.00
1 to 3 hours £3.00
3 to 5 hours £4.60
5 to 24 hours £5.80

3.9 It is proposed that Residents Parking and P&D will operate daily from 7 am to 8 pm to 
reflect the main operational hours of the hospital.

Page 11



This report is PUBLIC 
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Report Pages
Page 4 of 7

3.10 The table below shows examples of charges made by other Council’s:

Council 1st permit 2nd permit Business permit
Sandwell £25 £30 £100

Birmingham

Inner zone £385
Inner areas (general)- £225-

£785
Outer zone £90-£190

Outside of city centre £16

Outer areas 
£32 -

Staffordshire £45 - £90
Nottinghamshire £25 - -
Telford and 
Wrekin £25 - £115

Worcestershire £30 £30-£40 -
Gloucester £50 £100 £250-£850

3.11 The details of Phase one are shown on plans attached. The proposals include 98 P&D 
bays and 34 bays designated solely for the use of holders of Residents Permits. It is also 
proposed to amend no waiting restrictions to ensure safety at junctions and other 
appropriate areas. 

3.12 The implementation costs of Phase one are estimated to be £70,000 which includes civil 
engineering constructions works, road markings, pay machines and staff costs.

3.13 Annual revenue costs are estimated at £100,000 and include staffing costs for two 
officers for five day enforcement, machine maintenance costs and administration costs 
relating to the provision of permits. 

3.14 P&D parking and Resident Permits will both generate income to offset the scheme costs. 
However, until the scheme has been implemented it is extremely difficult to predict the 
level of income that will be generated within the scheme. It is proposed that a further 
report will be presented twelve months after implementation of Phase one detailing the 
outcomes of the scheme.

3.15 Various income scenarios have been tested, to reflect varying levels of P&D usage and 
the charge for a Residents Permits. The potential income levels are shown in the tables 
below.  

Page 12



This report is PUBLIC 
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Report Pages
Page 5 of 7

3.16 Anticipated income levels from Resident Permits are based on a total of 2000 
households on full implementation of all phases on the basis of 1.5 permits per 
household to reflect replacement permit / amendment charges. When the scheme was 
consulted upon previously a proposed charge of £40 for a permit was found to be 
unacceptable to residents. 

Potential income from permit issue is shown below for different phases and charging 
levels.

3.17 Income levels for P&D usage are based on a main enforcement period of five days (Mon 
– Fri) 7am to 5pm. The amount of time that a P&D space will be used by a paying 
customer is uncertain as overall levels of use and time occupied by residents permit 
holders is unknown but scenarios between 50% and 80% paid utilisation have been 
tested.

3.18 Enforcement of excess parking through the issuing of Penalty Charge Notices could also 
generate income estimated at £29,000 annually.

4.0 Future phases

4.1 It is proposed to implement the Phase two immediately following Phase one subject to 
feedback.

4.2 Phase three will be implemented during the 2017/18 financial year.

4.3 It should be noted that the implementation of early phases may increase the pressure for 
the implementation of the other phases due to displacement of parking demand.

 
5.0 Financial implications

Residents 
Permit charge

Phase one 
income                   

(250 households)

Future Phases 
income     (1750 

households)

Total income per annum   
(2000 households)

£000 £000 £000
£20 (8) (52) (60)
£30 (11) (79) (90)
£40 (15) (105) (120)

Pay & Display 
usage

Phase one 
income 

Future phases 
income

Total income 
per annum

£000 £000 £000
50% (113) (35) (148)
60% (136) (42) (178)
70% (158) (48) (206)
80% (181) (55) (237)

Page 13



This report is PUBLIC 
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Report Pages
Page 6 of 7

5.1 A budget of £150,000 exists in the current transportation capital programme to facilitate 
the implementation of all phases of the New Cross Residents parking scheme from which 
the estimated Phase one implementation costs of £70,000 will be accommodated.

5.2 Annual revenue costs are estimated to total £100,000. Income generation is anticipated 
to cover the revenue costs but levels are subject to a number of variants. 

5.3 A net annual revenue target of £125,000 for 2016/17 and 2017/18 in relation to the 
implementation of the New Cross Residents parking scheme has been budgeted. If a 
permit charge of £20 was set for residents on the basis of 1.5 permits per household then 
pay & display usage in the region of 60% would be required to ensure that annual 
income levels cover the full costs of the scheme and achieve approved savings targets. 

5.4 Income generated from the issue of visitor permits, special permits, replacement permits 
and excess parking enforcement will also contribute towards the net annual revenue 
target.

5.5 The consultation outcome and usage data from Phase one will further inform these 
income levels. It is a risk that income levels will be insufficient to cover costs and achieve 
the savings target and as such will create a revenue pressure on the General Fund.
[TT/13062016/L]

6.0 Legal implications

6.1 The Traffic Regulation Orders will be subject to the normal statutory consultation 
processes. 

6.2 In addition there will be a letter drop consultation with questionnaire in advance of the 
formal legal process. For a scheme to be taken forward it was agreed that a consultation 
should receive a minimum of a 60% response with 85% of responders being in favour of 
a residents parking scheme. 
[EB/160616/A]

7.0 Equalities implications

7.1 An on-going equality analysis is being undertaken on this policy, and pending on the 
feedback from the resident permits and  pay and display consultation this analysis will be 
refreshed or updated.

8.0 Environmental implications

8.1 The proposals should improve residential amenity and potentially reduce air pollution by 
reducing traffic volumes in residential streets.

Page 14



This report is PUBLIC 
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Report Pages
Page 7 of 7

8.2 New Cross Hospital Trust has been party to the Smart Network Smarter Choices project 
to promote active modes of travel to work. The project promotes public transport, cycling 
and walking and car sharing. 

8.3 The results of the last monitoring survey, which received a low response rate, indicated 
that there had been a reduction of 3.5% of single occupancy car use and an increase of 
car sharers by 1%, an increase in bus use and cycling of 1% each.

8.4 To support the project there is promotion of corporate public transport ticketing, regular 
Dr Bike sessions, and free cycle training. The Trust is also a member of Wolverhampton 
Car Share, which is open to all employees of the Trust.

8.5 The project is now complete, however signed up businesses with over 50 employees, 
can still receive support, albeit to a limited amount due to funding, pending the outcome 
of current bids to Department for Transport

9.0 Human resources implications

9.1 Enforcement of the scheme will require the deployment of one Civil Enforcement Officer.

10.0 Corporate landlord implications

10.1 None identified

11.0 Schedule of background papers

11.1 Residents Parking Permit Schemes – Cabinet (Resources) Panel, 4 November 2008

11.2 Transportation Capital Programme – 2016/17 and future years – Cabinet, 20 April 2016

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting (14 April 2016)
	5 New Cross Residents Parking Scheme

